
AMENDED AGENDA



 
 

 
 

 AGENDA- AMENDED 
 CITY OF INDIAN ROCKS BEACH 
 REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 TUESDAY, MARCH 12, 2024 @ 6:00 P.M. 
 CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
 1507 BAY PALM BOULEVARD 
 INDIAN ROCKS BEACH, FLORIDA 33785   
CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL 
 
1. PRESENTATIONS. 

A. REPORT OF Pinellas County Sheriff’s Office. 
B. REPORT OF Pinellas Suncoast Fire & Rescue District. 
C. PRESENTATION IRB Beach Community Food Pantry. 

 
2.  PUBLIC COMMENTS. [3-minute time limit per speaker.] 

(Any member of the audience may come forward, give their name and address, and state 
any comment or concern that they may have regarding any matter over which the City 
Commission has control, EXCLUDING AGENDA ITEMS. All statements made to the City 
Commission shall be made to the City Commission as a whole, not directed to any 
individual City Commission Member, and no personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks 
shall be permitted. No speaker shall be interrupted, and no debate shall occur between 
the speaker and the City Commission.)  

 
3.  REPORTS OF: 

A.  City Attorney. 
B.  City Manager. 
C.  City Commission. 

[3-minute time limit per City Commission Member.] 
 
4.  ADDITIONS/DELETIONS. 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. APPROVAL OF the February 13, 2024 City Commission Meeting Minutes. 
B. APPROVAL OF rescheduling June 11, 2024 Regular City Commission Meeting to 

June 18, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
C. APPROVAL OF the process to appoint vacant Commission Seat. 
D. APPROVAL OF Letter to Support for Strong Local Government Urban Fertilizer 

Ordinances. 
E. AUTHORIZING the City Manager to award portions of Bid Number I.R.B.P.W.D. 

2024-1 and enter into a contract with Harris-McBurney Company for the Outfalls 
03 & 04 Projects in the amount of $1,670,084.69 

 
6.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 A. BOA CASE NO. 2024-01- 314 6th Avenue. 

 CONSIDERING a variance request from Sec.110-131(1) f.2 (i) of the Code of 
Ordinance requesting an additional 3.34-foot incursion into the required 25 feet 
rear yard setback, resulting in a total setback of 21.66 feet for the enclosed 

City of Indian Rocks Beach 
1507 Bay Palm Boulevard, Indian Rocks Beach, Florida 33785 

www.indian-rocks-beach.com 

http://www.indian-rocks-beach.com/


stairway. 
  
7. OTHER LEGISLATIVE MATTERS: None. 

 
8. WORK SESSION: None. 
  
9. OTHER BUSINESS: None. 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT.    
 
APPEALS: Any person who decides to appeal any decision made, with respect to any matter 
considered at such hearing, will need a record of the proceedings and, for such purposes, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based, per s. 286.0105, F.S. Verbatim 
transcripts are not furnished by the City of Indian Rocks Beach, and should one be desired, 
arrangements should be made in advance by the interested party (i.e., Court Reporter). 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and s. 286.26, F.S., any person with a 
disability requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the 
City Clerk's Office with your request, telephone 727/595-2517 lkornijtschuk@irbcity.com, no later 
than FIVE (5) days before the proceeding for assistance. 
  
POSTED: MARCH 11, 2024.  
 
 NEXT REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 TUESDAY, APRIL 9, 2024 @ 6:00 P.M. 
  

Indian Rocks Beach Municipal Election. 
The City of Indian Rocks Beach Municipal Election to fill (2) City Commission Seats will be held 
on Tuesday, March 19, 2024, in the Civic Auditorium, 1507 Bay Palm Boulevard, Indian Rocks 
Beach, Florida, from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

Swearing-in Ceremony and Reception for Mayor-Commissioner Kennedy. 
The City of Indian Rocks Beach incoming City Commission will be sworn in during a public 
ceremony, on Thursday, March 28, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. The swearing-in ceremony will take place 
in the Civic Auditorium - 1507 Bay Palm Boulevard, Indian Rocks Beach, Florida. 
 
Following the swearing-in ceremony, a reception will be held for Mayor-Commissioner Joanne 
“Cookie” Kennedy.  
 
Please join us on March 28, 2024, as we honor Mayor-Commissioner Joanne “Cookie” Kennedy 
for years of dedicated service to the City of Indian Rocks Beach, as a city commissioner, board 
member, friend, environmentalist, and best of all, Mayor-Commissioner. 
 













 

 

   City Managers Report – March 2024 

       Brently Gregg Mims 

 

• Monthly vacation rental / code violation report attached. 

 

• The Administrative Team has begun preliminary work on the 
2024-25 Budget and update to Capital Improvement Plan. The 
process will follow the budget calendar previously approved by 
the City Commission.  
 

• The new City Website development is moving along. We 
anticipate the new City Website to be live by early summer. 
 

• Team members are working with Forward Pinellas to gather 
information on a possible amendment to the Land 
Development Code that provides additional processes for the 
City Commission to consider mixed-use developments on 
appropriately zoned smaller parcels. Any changes to the LDC 
will require review by P &Z and approval by the City 
Commission. 
 

Events   

  IRB City Elections – Tuesday, March 19, 2024 

  IRB Easter Egg Hunt – March 23, 2024 – 9-12 – Kolb Park 

  Rotary Pancake Breakfast – March 23, 2024- 7:30 AM 

  Calvary Church 











City of Indian Rocks Beach  
Regular City Commission Meeting Minutes, February 13, 2024 
Page 1 of 5 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF INDIAN ROCKS BEACH 
CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024- 6:00 PM 
1507 BAY PALM BOULEVARD INDIAN ROCKS BEACH, FL 33785 

 
Mayor-Commissioner Kennedy called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m., followed by the Pledge 
of Allegiance and a moment of silence. 
 
City Clerk, Lorin Kornijtschuk, swore in the newly appointed City Commissioner, John Bigelow. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor-Commissioner Joanne Kennedy, Vice-Mayor Commissioner 
Jude Bond, Commissioner Denise Houseberg, Commissioner Janet Wilson and Commissioner 
John Bigelow. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  City Attorney Randy Mora, City Manager Gregg Mims, Finance Director 
Dan Carpenter, Public Works Director Dean Scharmen, City Clerk Lorin Kornijtschuk and 
Finance/HR Specialist Elizabeth Atkinson. 
 
For continuity, items are listed in agenda order, although not necessarily discussed in that order. 
 
1 A. REPORT OF Pinellas County Sheriff’s Office. 
A PCSO representative reviewed the monthly report. 
 
1 B. REPORT OF Pinellas Suncoast Fire & Rescue District. 
A Pinellas Suncoast Fire & Rescue District representative reviewed the fire district’s monthly 
report.  
 
1 C. RECOGNITION OF Father Robert “Bob” Wagenseil. 
Mayor-Commissioner Kennedy presented Father Robert “Bob” Wagenseil with a recognition 
plaque.  
 
PRESENTATION BY Women’s Tea. 
Cecily Benga, the host of the  IRB Women’s Tea presented a check to the following organizations: 
The Beach Community Food Pantry and Mental Health for Healers/ First Responders. 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS. 
 
Oliver Kugler, 19111 Vista Bay Drive, Indian Shores, stated he is the new Community Relations 
Manager of Visit St. Pete – Clearwater. He thanked the Commission and staff for the IRB Boat 
Parade and  the holiday lights on Gulf Boulevard.  

Adrienne Dauses, 2008 Gulf Boulevard #3, stated  her and other homes on the 20th Avenue 
block had no Duke or Spectrum service due to a line being spliced. She stated she has had to 
make calls to the City regarding squatters and vagrants at 2004 Gulf Boulevard and recently the 
roof has collapsed. 



City of Indian Rocks Beach  
Regular City Commission Meeting Minutes, February 13, 2024 
Page 2 of 5 

 

Don House, 2104 Beach Trail, stated he read Mayor-Commissioner Kennedys reason for 
recusing herself from a portion of the November 2023 City Commission Meeting. He stated he 
still had questions. 

John Phanstiel, 448 Harbor Drive South, stated it is wonderful that the Police and Fire 
Departments give their monthly reports but more important is how many residents are we 
loosing each month. 

Mayor-Commissioner Kennedy closed the Public Comment. 

3 A. REPORT OF the City Attorney.  
 
City Attorney Mora stated the City short-term rental  litigation  has been administratively stayed 
while the parties explore alternative solutions outside of litigation. In addition to the short-term 
litigations the City has a couple of personal injury suits that are being handled by the City’s  
insurance defense council.  
 
City Attorney Mora provided an update to Senate Bills 280, 1537 and 609. He also stated that 
another bill was proposed  to commission a study to see how local government could be funded 
if ad valorem taxes were eliminated. 
 
Mayor-Commissioner Kennedy asked is there a bill dealing with local government and counties 
to do a streamline for 15 days on building departments. 
 
City Attorney Mora replied there is proposed legislation attempting to streamline permitting 
process. However, some of those previsions become less relevant for communities that are in 
the floodplain. 
 
3 B. REPORT OF the City Manager. 
City Manager Mims recognized team member Elizabeth Atkinson, Finance/HR Specialist, and her 
17 years of service with the City. 
 
City Manager Mims stated the speed sign on Harbor Drive is in the process of being replaced and 
another piece of adaptive playground equipment has been installed in Kolb Park. 
 
City Manager Mims stated the Special Magistrate program is working well. The City has achieved 
compliance with illegal conversion of ground floor areas in residential housing. Also, there is a 
judgement on a vacant commercial property that is still pending before the magistrate that has 
resulted in a 6-figure penalty. The property owner has taken steps to reopen the station. He stated 
the overwhelming majority of people that have code issues comply with the request from the city, 
it is a small percentage that do not, that  is the benefit of the Special Magistrate Program. 
 
3 C. REPORT OF the City Commission. 
 
Commissioner Wilson thanked the Pinellas County Sheriffs Office for assisting her with an 
incident she recently had. 
 
Commissioner Houseberg stated it was a wonderful farewell tea for Mayor-Commissioner 
Kennedy. 
 



City of Indian Rocks Beach  
Regular City Commission Meeting Minutes, February 13, 2024 
Page 3 of 5 

 

Commissioner Bigelow stated he made it through his second Commission Meeting and is 
looking forward to serving. 
 
Mayor-Commissioner Kennedy stated Winterfest will be on Saturday, February 17, 2024. 
 
4. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS. None. 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. APPROVAL OF the Amended November 14, 2023 City Commission Meeting 
Minutes. 

B. APPROVAL OF the January 11, 2024 Special City Commission Meeting Minutes. 

C. APPROVAL OF the January 11, 2024 City Commission Meeting Minutes. 

D. APPROVAL OF the dates for the City Commission Budget Workshops and Public 
Hearings for the Fiscal 2024/2025 Operating Budget and Capital Improvements 
Budget. 

E. RECEIVE/FILE December 2023 Year-To-Date First Quarter Financials. 

F. AUTHORIZING the City Manager to dispose of surplus property/equipment which 
has become unnecessary or unfit for the City’s use. 

City Attorney Mora read the Consent Agenda, consisting of Agenda Item 5 A through 5 F, by title 
only. 
 
MOTION was made by Commissioner Houseberg and seconded by Commissioner Wilson 
to approve the Consent Agenda, consisting of Agenda item nos. 5 A through 5 F. The 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 

6.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 A. RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01- A resolution of the City of Indian Rocks Beach, 
Florida, relating to lot mowing or clearing, providing for approval and endorsement of all 
assessments as finally fixed and adjusted. 2004 Gulf Boulevard, Indian Rocks Beach, Fl. 
33785. 

[Beginning of Staff Report] 

The City’s Code requires property owners to trim vegetation on their property and otherwise keep 
the premises clean and free of debris, trash, and other noxious matter.1 If a property owner fails 
to maintain the property in such a fashion, the City may take steps to abate the property and 
charge the owner an assessment commensurate with the cost to the City to do so.2  

Once the City completes the work in connection with the abatement of the property and upon 
proper notice to the necessary parties, “the city commission will meet to hear and determine any 

 
 
 



City of Indian Rocks Beach  
Regular City Commission Meeting Minutes, February 13, 2024 
Page 4 of 5 

 

objections or defenses that may be filed in writing to the assessment of the amount thereof.”3 
After the hearing is held, “the city commission shall by resolution approve and endorse all 
assessments as finally fixed and adjusted at [a public hearing]. Such assessment shall, from the 
date of such confirmation, constitute a lien on the respective lot or parcels of land or other real 
property upon which they are levied… All persons who fail to object in writing to the proposed 
assessment in the matter provided in this article shall be deemed to have consented to and 
approved the assessment.”4 

Attached to this Memorandum is Resolution 2024-01 and corresponding Exhibit A, 2004 Gulf 
Boulevard, Indian Rocks Beach, Fl. 33785 – the Assessment List for Lot Mowing. The property 
owner or agent listed on the Assessment for Lot Mowing has failed to maintain the property per 
the City’s Code and has caused the City to abate the property and assess the listed costs for 
doing so. The City has been in contact with Thelma Smith, regarding the status of the property. 
Ms. Smith has failed to maintain the property as required, and the City now seeks to recover its 
costs.  

Staff recommends the Commission approve Resolution 2024-01. 

[End of Staff Report] 

City Attorney Mora read Resolution No. 2024-01 by title only. 
City Manager Mims stated the property is not occupied and  has been an issue for a long time. 
The Commission previously approved a lien when the City demolished the free-standing 
dilapidated garage. Ongoing efforts by the City and private companies were used to maintain the 
property. The property was noticed in accordance with the City Code. The property owner 
received notice by registered mail and regular mail, no responses were received. Exhibit A shows 
an accrued passed due fees for cleanup and maintenance totaling $4,266.02. 

Vice-Mayor Commissioner Bond asked what the end goal is. City Manager Mims responded to 
have the property owner maintain their property. 

Mayor-Commissioner Kennedy opened the public hearing. 

Adrienne Dauses, 2008 Gulf Boulevard #3, stated 2004 Gulf Boulevard  is unhabitable, the roof 
has collapsed and there have been squatters’ multiple times. Someone tried to splice the lines to 
the electrical grid on 20th Avenue to attempt to get power to this abandoned house.  

Mayor-Commissioner Kennedy closed the public hearing. 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Wilson and seconded by Commissioner Houseberg 
to approve Resolution No. 2024-01, A Resolution of the City of Indian Rocks Beach, 
Florida, relating to lot mowing or clearing, providing for approval and endorsement of all 
assessments as finally fixed and adjusted. The Motion carried unanimously.  
 

Commissioner Wilson stated the City needs to place pressure so there is something done about 
this property. 

Commissioner Houseberg  stated it is terrible  when you have squatters in the house. 

 
 
 



City of Indian Rocks Beach  
Regular City Commission Meeting Minutes, February 13, 2024 
Page 5 of 5 

 

Vice-Mayor Commissioner Bond asked if these costs were retroactive or if these costs were 
moving forward. 

City Manager Mims responded these are expenses that we have already incurred. We would 
have to come back to the commission with any other costs. 

Commissioner  Bigelow  stated he would not want something like that next to his house. 

City Manager Mims stated on behalf of the people that work for the City if we were not taking 
care of the situation this would not be an agenda item. 

Mayor-Commissioner Kennedy stated as long as she has been elected, she knows of only one 
other property that was such a  mess.  

Roll Call Vote:  
AYES: Bigelow, Bond, Houseberg, Kenney, Wilson  
NAYS: None 
   

7.  OTHER LEGISLATIVE MATTERS. None. 
Mayor-Commissioner Kennedy stated she has been named the Chair of the Barrier Islands 
Governmental Council, due to a resignation. The next meeting will be held at Madeira Beach 
City Hall on Wednesday, February 28, 2024 at 9:00 AM.  
 
8. WORK SESSION ITEMS. None. 
 
9. OTHER BUSINESS. None. 
 
10.  ADJOURNMENT. None 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Houseberg and seconded by Commissioner Wilson 
to adjourn at 6:56 p.m. Unanimous approval by acclamation. 
 
 
 
_______________    ______________________________________ 
Date Approved    Joanne Moston Kennedy, Mayor-Commissioner 
 
 
Attest: __________________________ 
 Lorin A. Kornijtschuk, City Clerk 



































314  6th Avenue
BOA CASE NO. 2024-01



BOA CASE NO. 2024-01 – 314 6th Avenue
Variance request from Sec.110-131(1) f.2 (i) of the Code of 
Ordinances, of 3.34 feet into the required 25 feet rear yard 
setback, resulting in a total setback of 21.66 feet for the enclosed 
stairway for property located at 314 6th Avenue, Indian Rocks 
Beach, Florida, and legally described as Lot 8, Tract B, Haven 
Beach Replat, according to the plat thereof, recorded in Plat Book 
36, Page 34, of the Public Records of Pinellas County, Florida 
  



Sec.110-131(1) f.2 (i)

f. Setback requirements. The following minimum setbacks shall 
apply in the S district:

 2. Rear yard:

  i. Waterfront lots: 25 feet for single-family and 20 feet for  
duplex measured from the center of the seawall.



314 6th Avenue



314 6th Avenue



Approved by City

Approved by County



Tie-in Survey



Proposed Elevations



314 6th Avenue- Looking North



314 6th Avenue- Looking East



314 6th Avenue- Stairs



314 6th Avenue- Stairs



314 6th Avenue-West Neighbor 





























From: Linda Turner
To: Kornijtschuk, Lorin
Subject: BOA Case NO. 2024-01 314 6th Ave
Date: Monday, February 19, 2024 4:02:19 PM

We are responding to the information we received in regard to a Variance Request for the
property located at 314 6th Ave. IRB 

We motion to recommend that the City Commission DENY BOA CASE NO 2024-01-314 6th
Ave.
Variance Request.

We do NOT Approve of the Variance as it is in violation with the local ordinance set forth in
the Code of Ordinances.

Respectfully, 
Steve and Linda Turner
320 6th Ave., Indian Rocks Beach 33785
(727) 657-5566

mailto:berniejohn09@gmail.com
mailto:lkornijtschuk@irbcity.com




Subject Re: Variance request

To: [teresa_zyg@yahoo.com <teresa_zyg@yahoo.com>]

From heather adams <heatheradams80@yahoo.com>

Date: Tue, Feb 20, 2024 at 1:24 PM

Dear City of Indian Rocks Beach,

I am writing to object to the variance request at 314 6th Ave, Indian Rocks Beach. As a fellow neighbor of Haven
Beach Estates, I understand the need to preserve each owner's view of our canal and waterway. With the current
design being a solid cement wall, it makes it very difficult to see past. In addition, with our street being very
desirable for short-term rentals, I would worry that with the deck coming out over the neighbors' pool area this
could quickly become an issue if this property ever changed hands from the current owners. While I understand
this would be quite the undertaking to move, they could fairly easily add a spiral staircase on the opposite end of
the upper deck and be within the allowed setback without requiring a variance. If the variance request was for
stairs in the front of the house, it would be a different story, however, people buy homes on the water for their view
and enjoyment which directly affects their homes' value. This design would negatively affect the homeowners on
either side of this house.  I believe that the neighboring homes' view should be protected by not allowing the
current stair design that doesn't fall within the city ordinance. 

Thank you, 
Heather Crockett
727-207-9183










	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024-Amended-.pdf
	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024-.pdf
	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024.pdf
	Part 1 of Agenda Packet 3-12-2024



	CCM- Agenda-Amended-03-12-2024
	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024-Amended-.pdf
	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024-.pdf
	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024

	City Managers Report.docx3122024
	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024-
	2-13-2024 CCM Minutes 
	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024-

	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024-Amended-
	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024-
	CCM-Agenda_Packet_03-12-2024
	BOA 2024-01  314 6th Ave  Agenda Memo (RDM REV) Edit.pdf
	BOA 2024-04 314 6th Ave   PP.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13


	BOA 2024-01  314 6th Ave  Agenda Memo (RDM REV) Edit.pdf
	Part 1 of Agenda Packet 3-12-2024






